
 
Contact: Ben Caulfield, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 
Email:  ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk  
Published on Wednesday, 10 March 2021 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 17 March 2021 at 10.00 am, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sWP95ABy2IE  
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Bernadette Parkinson, Judith Addison, June Harrison, Kate Walsh and Kath Pratt 
 
Cooptees: Bernard Dawson and Doug Hayes 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions   
 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

3.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 25th November 2020 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended - That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:ben.caulfield@hyndburnbc.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sWP95ABy2IE


Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Community Safety and Police and Crime Update  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 
To update the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on how the 
Council contributes to Community Safety in the borough. 
 
Recommended - That the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee note the report and suggest any 
further actions.   

 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
COMMUNITIES AND WELLBEING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday, 25th November, 2020 

 
Present:  Councillor Glen Harrison (in the Chair),  

Councillors Bernadette Parkinson (Vice Chair), Judith Addison, 
June Harrison and Kate Walsh 
Co-optee - Bernard Dawson 

  

  

Apologies: Patrick McGinley 
 

 
153 Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor McGinley.  There were no 
substitutions.   
 

154 Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations declared at the meeting. 
 

155 Minutes of Last Meeting held on 30th October 2019 
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 30th October 2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record.   
  
Recommended        -  That the Minutes be received and approved as a 

correct record. 
 

156 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2020 - 2021 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report relating to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme.  He informed the Committee that the report requested Cabinet to give 
consideration to and comment on the draft work programme for Overview and Scrutiny for 
2020/21. 
 
Resolved - That the work programme for the Communities and 

Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 2020/21 
be approved. 

 
157 Defibrillators in Hyndburn 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submitted a report to provide the Committee with 
background information relating to problems associated with publically accessible AED 
(defibrillators) in Hyndburn.  He also reported that a representative of NWAS had been 
unable to attend the meeting.   
 
Helen McCue-Melling, Regeneration and Property Manager, gave details of the background 
to the report.  In summary, she reported that: 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

 in 2016 the Huncoat and Central Springhill Area Councils had authorised expenditure 
on nine defibrillators which were installed at publicly accessible sites across these 
areas.  As part of the installations an agreement had been produced laying out the 
responsibilities of each party (Council, NWAS and the building owner).   

 this agreement had not foreseen potential ongoing costs or identified a suitable 
Council department to take on the responsibility for the AEDs.  She also explained 
that any future Area Council applications for the installation of an AED must come 
from a third party, who would purchase, maintain and be responsible for the AED 
themselves.   

 there are now 20 publically accessible AEDs in the Borough for which NWAS have 
informed the Council they should be responsible for.  She pointed out that it would be 
the Council’s responsibility to repair the defibrillators attached to Council buildings 
although there was currently no Council department assigned responsibility for this.  
She reported that faults on defibrillators were not being reported to the Ambulance 
Service making these sites vulnerable and there was no budget to repair.   

 Defibrillators cost around £1,000 each and installation on a site about £2,000.  
Defibrillators are then registered with the Ambulance Service.   

 She requested that the Committee gave consideration to the issues raised and 
proposed recommended action.   

 
The Chair reported that the Committee had submitted questions in advance to Council 
Officers and the North West Ambulance Service (NWAS) and, although NWAS were unable 
to be in attendance, responses had been received on the following issues: 
 
Questions to NWAS: 
 

 How many times had public defibrillators been used in the last 12 months and the 
number of lives saved. 

 How had other areas dealt with similar issues to this? 

 How many other public defibrillators were there in Hyndburn, apart from the ones 
referred to in the report, and were they evenly spread across the borough? 

 
Questions to Council Officers: 
 

 How could offline defibrillators be brought back online and how much would it cost? 

 How much vandalism had there been to public defibrillators? 

 Could defibrillators be relocated from buildings where regular checks were not being 
carried out by building occupiers as agreed? 

 What budget 
would be required for maintaining the defibrillators and carrying out regular checks 
and how many hours per year would be required for this work?         

 
Responses were given as follows: 

 NWAS would have to 
be contacted to get the equipment back online as well as ensuring that all of the 
equipment was still in good working order and that any damage was reported to 
NWAS.  Details were given of the estimated costs of the equipment, ongoing 
maintenance costs and costs of changing pads.  She pointed out that this 
responsibility was not currently under the remit of the Facilities Section.   

 Only one defibrillator 
had been stolen by the end of July.   

 There would be a cost 
to moving boxes to a more suitable place.  

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

 The maintenance of 
defibrillators could be very time consuming and the project would only work if there 
was dedicated communication with the North West Ambulance Service.  

 
D. Holden, Resuscitation Lead for Cumbria, attended the meeting to inform the Committee 
of the importance of the scheme to the community.  She reported on the importance of 
defibrillators being available for emergency use and referred to some areas having AED 
Guardians and outlined their role. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred to the importance of ensuring that the scheme 
worked properly.  He agreed to contact other local Councils to see how they ran their 
schemes and to report back.   
 
Councillor Walsh asked if the defibrillators were not being maintained due to Covid 
restrictions and referred to the difficulties associated with the pandemic.  
 
The Chair requested that the Committee considered the main issues of ownership and 
maintenance of the scheme and proposed a Task and Finish Group to look at 
recommendations.  He suggested that the Task and Finish Group consisted of a minimum 
of 3 members.  Councillors Glen Harrison, Kate Walsh and Bernadette Parkinson all 
volunteered to be part of the Group. 
 
Resolved (1) That, a Task and Finish Group be established, as soon 

as possible, to consider issues related to a scheme for 
managing community defibrillators taking into 
consideration issues including ownership, 
maintenance, and budgetary; and 

 (2) That, the recommendations made by the Task and 
Finish Group are submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration, in order to speed up the process of 
establishing a robust and effective scheme.  

 
158 Hyndburn Hub Step-Up Presentation 

 
A presentation on the Hyndburn Hub Step-Up was given by Lyndsey Simms, Chief 
Executive of Hyndburn Leisure Trust.  She reported that the Hub had been set up to 
respond to the national lockdown restrictions in March 2020 and had now gone through 
three phases (March to the end of July, August to October and now in new national 
restrictions).  She pointed out that many Councillors were involved in community 
engagements and that there had been a good response from volunteers and the 
community.  She explained that the Hub was a brand that was well trusted and had met the 
needs of the local community during the last 8 months and that the work they had done at 
the beginning now stood them in good stead.  She outlined the type of support that the Hub 
offered and indicated that they had a list of around 700 people who they supported.  She 
explained that personnel from the Leisure Trust and the Council had been redirected from 
their normal roles to help out with the Hub and that they had 40-50 voluntary groups also 
supporting the Hub.  As a result of working together a Food Solution Network had been 
formed which had been given grant funding and would help to co-ordinate the network and 
increase food capacity.  The Hub helped to direct people to appropriate welfare officers and 
linked up to charity shops.  She informed the meeting that there were issues of loneliness 
for some people and that the Hub had been the only contact they had with others and 
therefore referred to its importance in this respect.  She informed the Committee that it was 
their aim to find out why people where having to access food banks and to look at future 
needs.   
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
4 

Members of the Committee submitted questions to the Officer in advance in relation to: 

 Support offered by the Hub to local foodbanks.  Are all foodbanks involved? 

 Challenges faced by the Hub since the recent national lockdown compared to the 
first. 

 Details of the criteria for receiving food parcels from the Hub and their distribution.  
Can people from outside the area access support from the Hub? 

 Is there a role for the Hub post Covid? 
 
Responses were given to the questions above as follows: 
 

 Foodbanks are working together with the number increased this time around. 

 The Hub faced faced less challenges this time around as the preparation work they 
had done at the beginning of the pandemic had placed them in good stead.   

 She provided details of how people could access the food parcels and how people 
would be directed to other networks across Lancashire if they did not live in the 
borough of Hyndburn.  

 Consideration was being given to how this brand could continue elements of this 
work post pandemic including drawing in funding in from areas dealing with health 
and wellbeing.  She pointed out that it was not their intention to duplicate structures 
if they were already there, though.   

 
Members asked what was in place to cover the provision usually provided by the Hub 
over the Christmas period.  Lyndsey Simms reported that Christmas cards were being 
sent out enclosing details of different services that could be contacted, if required, over 
the Christmas period.   

Resolved - That the report be noted.  

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 6



REPORT TO: 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 
17 March 2021 

PORTFOLIO: 
Cllr Jenny Molineux – Health and Communities 

REPORT AUTHOR: 
Kirsten Burnett, Head of Policy and OD 

TITLE OF REPORT: 
Community Safety Update 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: 
No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update the Committee on how the Council contributes to Community Safety in the borough. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee notes the report and suggests any further actions. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Community Safety Partnerships (CSPs) are an important feature of the network of partnerships 

that help to tackle crime and reduce reoffending and were set up under Sections 5-7 of the 
Crime & Disorder Act 1998.  This places a statutory duty on a number of responsible 
authorities to work in partnership to reduce crime and disorder.  The ‘responsible authorities’1 
of the Steering Group include: 

 

 Cumbria & Lancashire Community Rehabilitation Company 

 East Lancashire Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Hyndburn Borough Council 

 Lancashire Constabulary 

 Lancashire County Council 

 Lancashire Fire & Rescue Service 

 National Probation Service 
 
3.2 Additional members of the CSP can include other statutory, voluntary, community and private 

sector bodies that are able to make a positive contribution towards the development and 
effective delivery of the CSP priorities.  

 

                                                
1 As defined by the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, Police Reform Act 2002 and Police & Justice Act 2006 
and Police Reform & Social Responsibility Act 2011 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4.



3.3 They work together to protect their local communities from crime, focusing on local issues and 
priorities.  They reassess local crime priorities and develop community safety plans in 
consultation with partners and the local community. 

 
3.4 Police and Crime Commissioners also work together with their local CSP to develop local 

approaches to reduce and prevent crime.  Section 10 of the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 sets out a flexible framework for partnership working between CSPs 
and PCCs, allowing for the adoption of locally meaningful arrangements.  They must have 
regard to each other’s priorities when developing their respective plans 

 
Role of Scrutiny Committee 
 
3.5 Sections 19 and 20 of the Police and Justice Act2 brought in powers for scrutiny committees to 

investigate work being undertaken by Community Safety Partnerships.  It should be noted that 
this is a power to look at the work of the partnership as a whole rather than a power to 
scrutinise individual partners.  Scrutiny of the Police is undertaken by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner, who will him/herself be held to account by a Police and Crime Panel. 

 
Hyndburn’s Community Safety Partnerships Structure 
 
3.6 The Lancashire Community Safety Partnership Board (LCSPB) is responsible for addressing 

community safety issues through co-ordinating the work of county-wide ‘responsible 
authorities’ and other agencies to tackle priorities and deliver stronger and safer communities.  
The current board structure includes the Lancashire 12 districts and the unitary authorities of 
Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool by invite and together all are referred to as the 
‘Lancashire 14’.  The LCC Chief Executive Officer chairs the LCSPB, which meets quarterly.  
The Head of Policy and OD represents Hyndburn Borough Council on this group. 

 
3.7 This group has developed a Community Safety Agreement for Lancashire which is included as 

Appendix 1. 
 

3.8 The Pennine Lancashire Community Safety Partnership was established in 2015 between 
Blackburn with Darwen, Hyndburn, Rossendale, and Burnley Councils.  Pendle are not part of 
the formal agreement, though are partners in the Pennine CSP arrangements and are looking 
to formalise their engagement in the near future.  The Board works together with offender 
management services, the fire and rescue service, health providers and commissioners, the 
universities, voluntary and community sector organisations and housing providers as the 
representative body through which each agency discharges its Crime & Disorder duties.  
Hyndburn Borough Council’s representative at this group is the Community Safety Officer. 

 
3.9 Hyndburn Community Safety Partnership is the local body, co-ordinated by the Council, which 

brings together relevant partners across the borough. The Hyndburn CSP has made excellent 
progress in recent years in how it identifies and tackles local community safety priorities.  Until 
March 2020, it was chaired by the late Cllr Tony Dobson, who made an excellent contribution 
to this work and supported the building of excellent relationships with key partners.  The Chair 
is now the Council’s Head of Policy and OD and our Community Safety Officer co-ordinates 
much of the work of this group.  See Appendix 2 for where Hyndburn’s local priorities sit within 
the Pennine and County-wide priorities. 

 
  

                                                
2 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/48/section/19 

Page 8

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/13/section/10/enacted
https://www.lancashire.gov.uk/media/910608/community-safety-agreement-2019-2022.pdf
https://www.penninecsp.org.uk/


3.10 Hyndburn’s local CSP priorities are: 
 

 Environmental Crime 

 Violent Crime 

 Acquisitive Crime 

 Youth Related Crime 
 
3.11 There are other priorities throughout Lancashire that the Local Community Safety Partnership 

contributes to, such as Road Safety, CCTV and Reducing Reoffending with Wellbeing and 
Safeguarding threaded into each priority. 

 
3.12 We also contribute toward national campaigns, including the White Ribbon Campaign, Road 

Safety and other high profile campaigns. 
 
How we tackle each priority 
 
3.13 Each priority is assigned a task and finish group with key partners and a dedicated chair.  

These meetings allow each agency to provide the chair with an update on the action plan and 
also share information with other partners in order to provide a holistic approach in tackling the 
issue of concern. 

 
3.14 Each Task & Finish group reports back to the Community Safety Partnership for consideration 

and review.  This in turn provides updates for the Pennine Community Safety Partnership and 
Lancashire-wide Community Safety Steering group. 

  
3.15 We work collaboratively across Council departments to avoid duplication and make best use of 

our resources to tackle issues of concern.  These include Licensing, Planning, Waste Services, 
Parks and Open Spaces, Housing and Environmental Protection.   

 
Serious Violence Bill 2020 
 
3.16 A new ‘public health duty’ to tackle serious violence will cover the police, local councils, and 

local health bodies such as NHS Trusts, education representatives and youth offending 
services.  It will ensure that relevant services work together to share data, intelligence, and 
knowledge to understand and address the root causes of serious violence including knife 
crime.  It will also allow them to target their interventions to prevent and stop violence 
altogether.  

 
3.17 In addition, the government will amend the Crime and Disorder Act to ensure that serious 

violence is an explicit priority for Community Safety Partnerships, and that they have a strategy 
in place to tackle violent crime. 

 
3.18 The local Hyndburn CSP has achieved great successes in working in partnership from setting 

up a radio system for all retailers in the Town centre that has a direct link to the both the CCTV 
hub and Police.  This project was hailed as a great example of partnership working from the 
Office of the Police & Crime Commissioner who visited key partners in the borough.  This has 
reduced shoplifting dramatically and acts as a deterrent for potential crime to occur.  We have 
also been very successful in closing down businesses without the correct permits and licences 
and prosecuted those undertaking unlawful business activity within the Borough.  We have an 
established relationship with the business sector, providing a valuable means of sharing 
information and intelligence. 

 
  

Page 9



Data sharing 
 
3.19 The CSP will produce, adopt and regularly review its ‘Data Sharing Protocol’ under S115 of the 

Crime & Disorder Act 1998 and Crime & Disorder (prescribed information) Regulations 2007 
No.1831.  Members are required to sign the CSP’s Data Sharing Protocol and adhere to its 
conditions, taking into account confidentiality issues and relevant data protection and Human 
Rights legislation.  In the event of discussions taking place which are of a confidential nature, 
partners who have not signed a Data Sharing Protocol may be asked to leave the meeting for 
that item.  In order to protect the identity of a named individual or groups personalised data 
may be restrictive.  

 
Other related groups 
 
3.20 Within Lancashire there are a number of other groups which support Community Safety and 

Hyndburn Borough Council officers attend where relevant.  This includes the Lancashire 
Contest board, Prevent meetings, Safeguarding networks, Lancashire Strategic Hate Crime 
and Cohesion Group, Lancashire Anti-Social Behaviour Group, Lancashire Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Domestic Abuse Steering Group and the Violence Reduction Network.  We 
also contribute to regional networks when appropriate, for example Organised Crime.  The 
Lancashire CSP has commissioned a review of partnership and governance arrangements 
across Lancashire, which may lead to some changes in future. 

 
Crime and Disorder 
 
3.21 The recent strategic threat assessment for Hyndburn states the following:  
 

 Hyndburn had the 6th highest crime rate in Lancashire (2020) 

 11.6% of suspects in 2020 were under the age of 18 

 Violence without injury was the most reoccurring crime type in Hyndburn during 2020 with an 
age range 30-40 years 

 Repeat offending = 28% (Lancashire = 29%) and repeat victimisation = 25% (Lancashire = 
21%) (2018) 

 Barnfield Ward had the highest crime rate in 2020 

 The rate of police incidents is forecasted to continue decreasing in Hyndburn 

 Deliberate ASB fires were highest in Central Ward (2019) 
 
  

Page 10



3.22 Burglary 
 

 
 
 
3.23 Vehicle Crime 
 

 
  

Page 11



3.24 Robbery 

 
 
 
3.25 All Crime 
 

 
 
  

Page 12



2020

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

Non Youth 244 231 234 213 197 188

Youths 72 53 127 87 44 56

Total 316 284 361 300 241 244

2021

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan

Non Youth 423 309 374 341 318 406

Youths 92 73 143 118 74 107

Total ASB 515 382 517 459 392 513

110.2

2020

2019

ASB

ASB

% change on 

previous year
63.0 34.5 43.2 53.0 62.7

3.26 Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.27 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 defines ASB as:  
 

 Conduct that has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or distress to any person (i.e. 
objectively causes fear for one’s own safety), or  

 Conduct capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in relation to that persons 
occupational residential premises, or  

 Conduct capable of causing housing-related nuisance or annoyance to any person  
 
3.28 As a partnership we are intelligence-led and information driven to ensure resources are 

deployed through tasking and coordination into the right areas at the right time to combat ASB 
effectively.  We: 

 

 Ensure that timely and targeted enforcement action is taken against perpetrators of ASB.  

 Tackle specific elements of ASB (e.g. youth disorder, graffiti-signal crimes etc.)  

 Work collectively in order to prevent /divert ASB from occurring in the first place.  

 Review how we combat ASB within the borough in order to improve our response to ASB 
complaints.  

 Review and implement ASB legislation locally by seeking to put into place Public Space 
Protection Orders (PSPOs).  

 Provide support to vulnerable and repeat victims of ASB.  
 
3.29 Nitrous Oxide has become an issue for the borough in that the use of ‘legal highs’ is putting 

the public at risk as well as contributing to a significant littering problem.  Loopholes in the 
Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 have led to the activity of NO2 inhalation becoming commonplace.  
We are working with Trading Standards to minimise the risk posed by this product.  

 
3.30 Cannabis usage: the police have primacy on this issue, however it is clear that personal use 

of cannabis within dwellings is becoming a problem that has led to an increase in complaints 
by neighbours especially during lockdown periods. 

 

3.31 Youth related ASB has increased by 91% (up 51 incidents to 107) whilst non-youth ASB 

increased by 116% (up 218 incidents to 406).  ASB pan-Lancashire and nationally is recording 
higher levels than the same period in 2020.  One of the reasons for the increase is as a direct 
result of Covid-19 restrictions and the public reporting breaches of these restrictions.  

 

Page 13



3.32 Prior to the outbreak of Covid-19, the long-term trend for anti-social behaviour in Hyndburn 
along with Lancashire was downward. However, due to the Covid-19 restrictions imposed from 
March 2020, there have been significant increases in both Hyndburn and pan-Lancashire. 

 
3.33 Repeat locations for youth related ASB are Tesco, McDonalds, B&M and Asda carparks and 

open spaces.  We work with local businesses, who are represented on the youth panel task & 
finish group.  We conduct joint operations with our Parks teams and the police tackling youth 
nuisance in our parks and open green spaces.  

 
3.34 The wards recording the greatest number of Covid-19 related incidents in the last three months 

were Central, Peel and Spring Hill. 
 
Policing  
 
3.35 The Hyndburn Policing team consists of 1 Inspector, 2 Sergeants, 9 Police Constables, and 14 

PCSOs.  
 
3.36 Local police teams work closely with the Council.  Regular meetings take place between all of 

the team in the form of a joint tasking and co-ordinating meeting, where geographical problems 
around all areas of ASB are highlighted and actions allocated to deal with emerging and/or 
historical problems.  

 
Lancashire Talking  
 
3.37 Lancashire Talking gives local people a voice in how the Policing Team approach the 

neighbourhood policing priorities.  

3.38 The concerns of local residents are raised through a 3 monthly updated survey to identify their 
top 5 community issues, so Neighbourhood Policing Teams can prioritise problem solving and 
targeting activity in their neighbourhood on a daily basis, on the problems that matter most to 
their community.  

3.39 It can be considered a modern-day digital version of the traditional PACT approach to 
identifying community concerns, but is more effective as it involves thousands of residents in 
setting priorities and provides residents with personalised updates about the issues that they 
raise.  

3.40 Hyndburn has been the successful pilot for the programme which has now been devolved 
across the whole of Lancashire and we currently have 17 % of Hyndburn households 
participating.  

3.41 Since its inception the top 3 priorities raised by Hyndburn residents are:  

 Anti-social behaviour  

 Road Safety issues  

 Drug dealing  
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 N/a 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 N/a 

Page 14



 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including any 
future financial commitments for the 
Council) 
 

The Hyndburn CSP receives a grant from the 
Police & Crime Commissioner which is used to 
fund small community projects within the 
borough. The Community Safety Officer post is 
funded by Hyndburn Borough Council. 
 

Legal and human rights implications 
 

The Council has legal obligations which are 
detailed in the report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

None – report is for information. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

n/a 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: List of Background Papers  
 
None 
 
8. Freedom of Information  
 

8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000. 

 

Page 15

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Appendix 1 

 

P
age 16



Appendix 2 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Last Meeting
	4. Community Safety and Police and Crime Update

